
11‐7‐18 These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent 
Planning Board Meeting. 

 

1 
 

Town of Chester 1 

Planning Board Meeting 2 

Wednesday, November 7, 2018 3 

Municipal Complex 4 

Approved Minutes 5 

 6 

Members Present: 7 

Brian Sullivan, Chairman  8 

Evan Sederquest, Vice Chairman 9 

Michael Weider, Member  10 

Aaron Hume, Alternate Member 11 

Dana Theokas, Alternate Member (arrived at 7:06 pm) 12 

Cass Buckley, Ex‐Officio  13 

 14 

Members Absent:  15 

Elizabeth Richter, Member 16 

Richard Snyder, Member 17 

 18 

Staff Present: 19 

Andrew Hadik, Planning Coordinator 20 

 21 

Others Present at Various Times: 22 

 23 

Board of Selectmen (arrived at 7:20 pm): 24 

  Cass Buckley 25 

Steve D’Angelo 26 

Stephen Landau 27 

Jeremy Owens   28 

Budget Committee Members: 29 

  Christina Gelinas 30 

  Rhonda Lamphere   31 

Library: 32 

  Kandace Knowlton, Director 33 

  Deb Munson, Library Board of Trustees 34 

Police Department: 35 

  Aaron Berube, Chief of Police 36 

Recreation Department: 37 

  Corinna Reishus, Director 38 

     Commission Member: 39 

               Michelle Trask, Chairperson 40 

 41 



11‐7‐18 These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent 
Planning Board Meeting. 

 

2 
 

Mike Oleson, Road Agent 42 

Benjamin Qualters, Boy Scout ‐ Troop 163 43 

TJ Qualters, Chester Resident 44 

Penny Williams, Tri‐Town Times 45 

Others unknown to this Recording Secretary. 46 

 47 

Chairman Sullivan opened the meeting at 7:02 pm. 48 

 49 

Chair Sullivan noted Mr. Hume as the alternate for Mr. Snyder and Ms. Theokas as the alternate for Ms. 50 

Richter.                           51 

            Meeting Agenda 52 

 53 
General Business 54 
 55 

 Review and sign invoices and time sheets. 56 

 Review and approve minutes for October 24, 2018 meeting. 57 

 Review and discuss Stephen Bennet’s memo re:  Article 13 – Growth Management Ordinance 58 

 Review and discuss adoption of Waiver Request Form for waiver requests from items in the 59 
Subdivision or Site Plan checklists and regulations. 60 

 Discuss and approve discontinuing the Planning Board’s petty cash account. 61 

 Discuss and approve printer purchase. 62 
 63 
7:05 PM – Appointments 64 
 65 
Annual review of Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) projects with Departments, Committees, Selectmen, 66 
and Budget Committee in preparation of the upcoming annual update of the CIP. 67 
 68 

1. Library – Director Kandace Knowlton 69 
2. Police Department – Police Chief Aaron Berube 70 
3. Recreation Commission – Director Corinna Reishus 71 
4. Government Buildings – Selectman Stephan Landau 72 

 73 
Public Hearings 74 
 75 
None scheduled. 76 
 77 
Future Meeting Dates:   78 
 79 
November 14 ‐ CIP Project Reviews with Departments, BOS and Budget Committee 80 
November 28 – CIP, Gesel SPR 81 
 82 

Review and approve minutes for October 24, 2018 meeting. 83 
 84 
The Board reviewed the minutes from October 24, 2018 meeting. 85 



11‐7‐18 These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent 
Planning Board Meeting. 

 

3 
 

Mr. Weider made a motion to approve the minutes from October 24, 2018 as presented; Vice Chair 86 
Sederquest seconded the motion.  Motion approved, 3‐0‐1, Mr. Hume abstained. 87 

 88 
Discuss and approve discontinuing the Planning Board’s petty cash account. 89 
 90 
Mr. Weider made a motion to discontinue the Planning Board’s petty cash account; Mr. Hume seconded 91 
the motion.  Motion approved, 4‐0‐0. 92 
 93 
Review and discuss adoption of Waiver Request Form for waiver requests from items in the Subdivision 94 
or Site Plan checklists and regulations. 95 
 96 
Mr. Hadik presented to the Board a formal waiver request form for items on the Subdivision and Site Plan 97 
checklist, and Site Plan and Subdivision regulations.  He said that the new form will facilitate more formality 98 
in keeping with the RSA in granting waivers. 99 
 100 
Mr. Weider made a motion to accept the use of the waiver request form for Subdivision and Site Plan RSA 101 
67436 II (n); Vice Chair Sederquest seconded the motion.  Motion approved, 5‐0‐0. 102 
 103 
Review and discuss Stephen Bennet’s memo re:  Article 13 – Growth Management Ordinance 104 
 105 
Mr. Hadik distributed the memo from Stephen Bennet (not present).  106 
 107 
The Board discussed the memo’s topic regarding Article 13 – Growth Management Ordinance. 108 
 109 
Mr. Hadik explained that they should budget for a study to readopt the ordinance.  He said that he will 110 
consult with SNHPC to determine the required budget amount. 111 
 112 
Mr. Hadik also said that he believes $2,000 to $4,000 should be budgeted for updating the Town’s Source 113 
Water Protection Plan which hasn’t been updated since 2006. 114 
 115 
Discuss and approve printer purchase. 116 
 117 
Mr. Hadik presented information on a color printer Epson Expression Photo HD XP – 15000 Wide ‐Format 118 
Inkjet Printer.  He and the Board discussed the need for this printer. 119 
 120 

Mr. Hume made a motion to approve the purchase of an inkjet printer; Mr. Weider seconded the 121 
motion.  Motion approved, 5‐0‐0. 122 
 123 
7:20 PM ‐ Board of Selectmen members Cass Buckley, Steve D’Angelo, Stephen Landau, and Jeremy 124 
Owens joined the Planning Board members, and the Budget Committee members Christina Gelinas, and 125 
Rhonda Lamphere at the meeting table. 126 
 127 
Annual review of Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) projects with Departments, Committees, Selectmen, 128 
and Budget Committee in preparation of the upcoming annual update of the CIP. 129 
 130 

1. Library – Director Kandace Knowlton 131 
 132 



11‐7‐18 These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent 
Planning Board Meeting. 

 

4 
 

Ms. Knowlton joined the Board at the meeting table at 7:20 pm. 133 
 134 
Chairman Sullivan welcomed all people to the meeting.  He noted that tonight is an opportunity to gather 135 
information from the Department Heads rather than criticize or pick apart specific project items.  Chairman 136 
Sullivan said that this is the time to ask questions about funding and what would happen if the project was 137 
pushed back to a later date. 138 
 139 
Mr. Hadik concurred with Chairman Sullivan stating that this is an opportunity for those present to ask for 140 
more supporting information if it is felt not enough supporting data is present to aid in the decision making.  141 
He said to not consider these items in a “big picture” context, but take each item individually without pre‐142 
biasing themselves, as the “big picture” isn’t fully known yet. 143 
 144 
Chairman Sullivan noted that this process is not completed in one or two meetings, but it is a process done 145 
over multiple meetings.  He said that everyone is welcome to attend any of the meetings, and if anyone 146 
feels they need more information they should get back in touch with Mr. Hadik. 147 
 148 
Mr. Hadik reviewed, for those at the meeting table, the three items which the Library has listed as projects 149 
on the CIP.  He said that of the three projects, Comprehensive Library Renovation, Rear Patio, and Connect 150 
to Post Office and Second Floor Renovation, the Comprehensive Renovation should be discussed tonight.  151 
Mr. Hadik noted that the Connecting the Library to the Post Office and Second Floor renovation project is 152 
far out on the CIP and is a placeholder to address a future space needs issue.  He explained that the Rear 153 
Outdoor Patio project is scheduled three years out, so it would not need to be discussed tonight.  154 
 155 
Library Projects 156 
 157 
Comprehensive Renovation ($50,000 – 2019‐2020) 158 
 159 
Ms. Knowlton said that they have been working for years to try to renovate the Library and are now set to 160 
do this in 2019.  She described the process to date, noting the lowest estimate they have for the renovation 161 
is $240,000.  Ms. Knowlton explained where the Library is getting part of the funds for the project:  a trust 162 
fund valued at $110,000, a 501c Foundation which has raised $15,000, and Library Impact Fees of $19,000.   163 
 164 
Chairman Sullivan reiterated that of the needed $240,000, the Library has $110,000 in trust, $19,000 in 165 
Impact Fees, and is hoping to raise $85,000 through the Foundation, leaving a shortfall of $40,000, of which 166 
they are putting on the CIP.  167 
 168 
Ms. Knowlton noted that the Chester Building Inspector (not present) has identified areas that need to be 169 
brought up to code, which need to be worked into the renovation. 170 
 171 
Mr. Weider pointed out that the CIP should reflect the total real cost of the project of $255,960 on the 172 
spreadsheet, not the amount requested from the CIP.  Mr. Hadik said he would make the necessary changes 173 
to Table 10. 174 
 175 
Ms. Munson said that the Library will be putting the project out to bid in March, so they will have a more 176 
specific number at that time. 177 
 178 



11‐7‐18 These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent 
Planning Board Meeting. 

 

5 
 

Mr. Hadik explained that the Library will not be charged the building permit fees that the Town normally 179 
charges a private builder. 180 
 181 
Chairman Sullivan explained that the project costs directly affect the impact fees calculations. 182 
 183 
Mr. Buckley asked what the risk to the Trust or the Foundation if the project is pushed off from this coming 184 
year.  Ms. Munson said that the Foundation will live in perpetuity as a way to donate to the Library.   185 
 186 
Mr. Buckley asked how many Chester residents use the Library.  Ms. Knowlton said that there are 3400 in 187 
the system with 99.9 percent Chester residents. 188 
 189 
Ms. Munson said that Chester residents use other Libraries that are larger, because “we just don’t have the 190 
space or the collection.” 191 
 192 
Rear Patio – Outdoor Function Area ($27,000 – 2021‐2022) 193 
 194 
Mr. Weider asked to discuss the Library rear patio project, noting that the estimate of $27,000 is from one 195 
quote.   196 
 197 
Chairman Sullivan suggested combining the projects and having everything done at once.  The Library 198 
representatives said that the biggest concern of the Library is not to impact the Chester citizens on their tax 199 
bill. 200 
 201 
Representatives from the Library departed the meeting at 7:41 pm. 202 
 203 
Connect to Post Office and Renovate Second Floor (This item was not discussed.) 204 
 205 

2. Police Department – Police Chief Aaron Berube 206 
 207 
Police Chief Berube joined the Board and others at the meeting table at 7:42 pm. 208 
 209 
Police Department Projects 210 
   211 
Cruiser with Outfitting (+3.5%/year) ($53,749 – 2019‐2020) 212 
 213 
Chairman Sullivan noted that this item is a recurring yearly item; he asked if any of the Departments have 214 
any questions regarding the item. 215 
 216 
Mr. Weider and Chief Berube discussed the possibility of using funds from the Special Duty Account to 217 
offset some of the matching funds for the yearly cost of a cruiser as a second funding mechanism.  Chief 218 
Berube said that they have been using much of those special duty account funds the last two years for 219 
communication upgrades.  He explained the reason and costs of the communication upgrades, noting that 220 
the project will cost approximately $38,000 or $39,000 and will come out of the Special Duty Account.  221 
 222 
The Boards and Chief Berube had discussion about the special duty details, and the monies put into those 223 
accounts.  Mr. Weider asked about the rates compared to other Towns.  Chief Berube said that Chester’s 224 
rates are lower than surrounding Towns. 225 



11‐7‐18 These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent 
Planning Board Meeting. 

 

6 
 

 226 
Discussion was had about the rate an officer makes during special duty, if they are paid time and one‐half 227 
during special duty, cost of insurance and vehicles, and the amount a contractor pays for special duty. 228 
 229 
Chief Berube asked if he should use the trade‐in‐value for the cruiser as the matching funds for a limited 230 
time line on the CIP.  Mr. Hadik said that the matching funds for a limited time line is for grants. 231 
 232 
Discussion was had about average maintenance costs, gas vehicles, mileage, upkeep, and other facts about 233 
the cruisers.  234 
 235 
Police Protective Equipment ($10,000 every year for 7 years) 236 
 237 
Chair Sullivan asked for any questions.  No questions were asked. 238 
 239 
Design Plans ($70,000 ‐2019‐2020) 240 
 241 
Chief Berube asked if this is something that should be discussed this year. 242 
 243 
Discussion was had about to when this project should be pushed, and if this project should be incorporated 244 
into the needs of the Department in five years or is it not needed. 245 
 246 
Mr. Buckley stressed that this item gets to the “big picture” of do you need it or do you want it.  He 247 
explained that there needs to be caution using the words, “Do we need it or would it be nice to have.”  Mr. 248 
Buckley said that the phrasing should be, “How would it impact services that this department provides and 249 
what would be the gain in level of service provided by spending this money?” 250 
 251 
Chair Sullivan said that he agrees, but that if the project reflects a safety concern that needs to be part of 252 
the discussion. 253 
 254 
Mr. Hadik noted that the Sally Port has been on the radar for at least 12 years and the primary reason is 255 
officer safety while bringing a suspect in to be booked, and inclement weather impeding the immediate 256 
response of the police.   257 
 258 
Mr. Buckley noted that he is referring to the entire CIP when asking if the project is needed or wanted, and 259 
thinking in terms of level of service provided. 260 
 261 
More discussion was had about what year the sally port should be put in the CIP. 262 
 263 
Construction ($500,000 – 2021‐2022) 264 
 265 
Mr. Weider pointed out that a more realistic number should be put in this project line.  Much discussion 266 
was had about the cost of construction of a build‐out on the existing building, or the cost of new facility.  It 267 
was agreed that $3,000,000 should be the figured used for the project cost estimate. 268 
 269 
PD Software ($30,000 ‐ 2020‐2021) 270 
 271 



11‐7‐18 These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent 
Planning Board Meeting. 

 

7 
 

Chief Berube detailed the problems with the old system, and explained the need for the mitigation service 272 
to bring all the information onto new software.  He noted that currently, if they are using the new software, 273 
they are unable to access the data on the old software unless they close one system down and open the 274 
other system.  Chief Berube said that this could lead to a potential officer safety issue if they have critical 275 
information in the old system and are unable to access it. 276 
 277 
Chief Berube departed the meeting at 8:19 pm.  278 
 279 

3. Recreation Commission – Director Corinna Reishus 280 
 281 
Ms. Reishus and Ms. Trask joined the Board at the meeting table at 8:20 pm. 282 
 283 
Mr. Hadik pointed out that the first three items, all of which are in the 2019 – 2020 column, are already fully 284 
funded, so Recreation will not be asking for CIP funding in next May’s CIP Funding Warrant article. 285 
 286 
Ms. Lamphere said that the items such as netting, floor mats, and wall pads are direct cost items of the 287 
programs, and should be funded out of the revolving fund from the collected program fees.  She said the 288 
items should not be in the CIP.  Ms. Lamphere said that the Recreation Department is accumulating a lot of 289 
money in their revolving fund, and that money should be used for things that are a direct cost of the 290 
program.  Ms. Trask stated that the floor mats and wall pads are not program specific.  Ms. Reishus pointed 291 
out that the first three items are already funded. 292 
 293 
Ms. Lamphere said that through program fees the Recreation Department has managed to accumulate 294 
$109,000.  She asked why that money isn’t being spent down rather than the Recreation Department going 295 
to the tax payers and asking for money for equipment with the CIP.  Ms. Reishus said that the revolving 296 
funds are RSA program related money to be used solely for the program from which they have collected the 297 
fees.  She said that you cannot use one program’s money for any other recreation program. 298 
 299 
Mr. Weider reiterated that each Recreation program has its own money that cannot be used for other 300 
programs, but, if a program has money that can be used from collected fees, that information should be 301 
shown on the CIP with the available funds for new items on the forms.   Ms. Reishus agreed. 302 
 303 
Ms. Reishus explained that the revolving fund bank balance may be $109,000, but the daily ledger is only 304 
about $75,000.  She said that the daily ledger is significantly less because they only do a quarterly transfer, 305 
so there are expenses and receipts from the revolving account for which haven’t yet been accounted.  306 
 307 
Ms. Lamphere disagreed noting that she checked with the Finance Director (not present) and the account is 308 
about $100,000.  Mr. Hadik noted that funds are often “in transit” and therefore may not appear of specific 309 
account balances. 310 
 311 
Recreation Department Projects 312 
 313 
Sports Netting, Floor Mats, Wall Pads, Water Fountain ($30,000 ‐2019‐2020) & Ballfields – Finish Grading 314 
and Reseeding ($30,000 – 2019‐2020) 315 
 316 
These items were not discussed as they are already approved and funded.   317 
 318 



11‐7‐18 These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent 
Planning Board Meeting. 

 

8 
 

Technology Center at the Community Center ($5,000 – 2019‐2020) 319 
 320 
Ms. Reishus explained that the Recreation Department is funding this item through their impact fees; she 321 
said that the Recreation Department is not asking the tax payers to fund any items this year.  322 
 323 
When asked by Ms. Lamphere why the project is on the CIP, Mr. Hadik explained that to fund a project with 324 
impact fees, a project must be listed on the CIP. 325 
 326 
Ms. Lamphere inquired about the computers available to the community at the Library. 327 
 328 
Mr. Hadik stated that although he has never spoken about the Technology Center in the past, after working 329 
with SNHPC on the Age‐Friendly Initiative, he said that a necessary survival skill for the elderly is having the 330 
understanding of how, and the ability to, go on‐line to do research, contact insurance companies, make 331 
purchases etc.  He said that with only two terminals at the library, having two more terminals available at 332 
the Senior Center should be funded.  Some of the Selectmen agreed. 333 
 334 
Discussion was had about the types of technology that should be purchased. 335 
 336 
Ms. Reishus said that many groups use the Community Center:  Girl Scouts, Seniors, and kids from the 337 
Summer Program. 338 
 339 
Mr. Weider suggested building in a refresh for every three or four years.   340 
 341 
Fitness Trail ($20,000 – 2020‐2021) 342 
 343 
The fitness trail was reviewed.  Ms. Reishus noted that the location is to be determined, however, the 344 
current thought is to place it on the Natural Area so it is accessible by Chester Academy.  Ms. Lamphere 345 
expressed her concern this project “is a want, not a need.” 346 
 347 
Beach Area Pavilion ($40,000 – 2020 – 2021) 348 
 349 
Ms. Trask said that the Pavilion was added to the CIP two years ago, at the request of the Wason Pond 350 
Recreation and Conservation Commission; she noted that the Pavilion is also part of the Wason Pond 351 
Master Plan. 352 
 353 
Mr. Hadik pointed out that there may be enough impact fees to cover this project when it comes up. 354 
 355 
Ballfields – Dugouts ($10,000 – 2020 ‐ 2021) 356 
 357 
The Ballfields – Dugouts were reviewed.  Chairman Sullivan clarified that these dugouts are for the safety of 358 
the kids.   359 
 360 
Picnic Tables 361 
 362 
Picnic Tables were reviewed.  Ms. Trask said they are predominately for the Summer Program, but they 363 
would be available to all Public at Wason Pond. 364 
 365 



11‐7‐18 These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent 
Planning Board Meeting. 

 

9 
 

Town Tennis Courts ($50,000 – 2021 – 2022) 366 
 367 
Tennis Courts were reviewed.  Much discussion was had with some very vocal opposition.  Ms. Reishus 368 
explained that they are putting projects on the list that are brought to the Recreation Commission from 369 
feedback from the community. 370 
 371 
Ballfields – Equipment Sheds ($20,000 – 2021 ‐2020) 372 
 373 
Much discussion was had about the equipment sheds.  Mr. Landau suggested the Recreation Commission 374 
get a trailer that can be moved, like what the Boy Scouts use, and doesn’t require the maintenance that a 375 
building would require. 376 
 377 
Ballfields – Toilet Facility ($50,000 – 2022‐2023) 378 
 379 
Toilet Facilities were discussed.  Ms. Trask said that the Recreation Commission spends a lot of money on 380 
Porta‐Potties a year.  Ms. Lamphere replied that even Chester Academy uses Porta‐Potties. 381 
 382 
Mobile Concession Stand ($25,000 – 2022 – 2023) 383 
 384 
The Concession Stand was discussed.  Ms. Reishus defended the Concession Stand, noting that the 385 
community has asked for this item. 386 
 387 
Ballfields – Goals, Field Lining Equipment ($10,000 – 2023 – 2024) 388 
 389 
When asked why this is on the list when it should be funded by program fees, Ms. Trask explained that the 390 
Recreation Department did buy goals with program fees but didn’t have enough money for the big goals, 391 
which were then purchased with impact fees.  She said that it was a good thing that they did, because 392 
Chester Academy’s field was under water all season and they could play at Wason Pond with the goals. 393 
 394 
Mr. Hadik pointed out that this is an item that may not be funded by the CIP, but needs to be listed in the 395 
CIP so as to be able to use the impact fees to pay for it. 396 
 397 
Refurbish Basketball Court/Skating Rink ($25,000 – 2023 – 2024) 398 
 399 
Discussion of the asphalt basketball court was had.   400 
 401 
Refurbish Skateboard Park ($50,000 – 2024 – 2025) 402 
 403 
This project was not discussed. 404 
 405 
Ballfields Scoreboard ($15,000 – 2024 – 2025) 406 
 407 
It was noted that the scoreboard must be portable at Wason Pond, and can’t have advertising. 408 
 409 
Town Dog Park ($50,000 – 2025 – 2026) 410 
 411 



11‐7‐18 These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent 
Planning Board Meeting. 

 

10 
 

Ms. Reishus stated that this is a community driven project.  She noted that Chester has a leash law making it 412 
illegal to have a dog off‐leash in Town.  Discussion about dog parks in other Towns was had.  Selectman 413 
Buckley noted a number of nearby towns already have these. 414 
 415 
Mr. Owens departed the meeting at 9:31 pm. 416 
 417 
Ballfields – Irrigation ($15,000 – 2025 – 2026) 418 
 419 
The drainage issues at French Field were discussed. 420 
 421 
Gravel Entrance/Parking Area at the Spring Hill Farm – Lane Road property ($10,000 – 2025 – 2026) 422 
Ms. Trask noted that this has come up because of the need for safe parking at the sledding hill. 423 
 424 
Ms. Reishus and Ms. Trask departed the meeting at 9:33 pm. 425 

 426 
4.  Government Buildings – Selectman Stephan Landau 427 

 428 
General Government Projects 429 
 430 
IT Hardware and Software Upgrades ($39,400 – 2019 – 2020) 431 
Financial Software ($57,655 – 2019 – 2020) 432 
Interactive GIS Maps for Town Website ($5,000 – 2019 ‐2020) 433 
Zero‐urn Lawnmower ($15,600 – 2019 – 2020) 434 
Re‐Shingle Municipal Annex Roof ($60,000 – 2019 – 2020) 435 
Re‐Paint Stevens Hall ($68,000 – 2019 ‐2020) 436 
Re‐ Paint Highway Garage ($18,000 ‐2019‐2020) 437 
Upgrade Municipal Building and PD HVAC ($28,250 – 2020 – 2021) 438 
Upgrade Municipal Building Annex Boiler ($25,000 – 2020 – 2021) 439 
F‐150‐type Utility Vehicle with Plow ($60,000 – 2024 – 2025) 440 
 441 
Mr. Landau, Mr. Hadik, and the Board members discussed the General Government projects.  Mr. Hadik 442 
noted he would like copies of the cost estimates or bids for these projects. 443 
 444 
Mr. Buckley departed the meeting at 10:00 pm. 445 
 446 

Adjournment 447 

 448 

Ms. Theokas made a motion to adjourn the meeting; Mr. Hume seconded the motion.  Motion 449 

approved, 5‐0‐0. 450 

 451 

The meeting was adjourned at 10:25 pm. 452 

 453 

Respectfully submitted, 454 

 455 

C. Molly Qualters 456 

Recording Secretary 457 


